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CHAirMAn’s rEPOrT

It is with pleasure that I present to you the Annual 
Report and Financial Statements for Pioneer Assurance 
Company Limited for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Business environment
In the year 2011, the economy faced a number of 
challenges such as the weakening of Kenya shilling 
against major currencies, drop in overall prices at the 
Nairobi Securities Exchange and spiraling inflation and 
high interest rates. NSE index fell to its lowest within the 
year. The GDP grew at an average of 4.5% compared 
to 5.8% recorded in 2010 and is projected to grow by 
around 5.3% in year 2012. 

Year 2011 results
The company performance was better compared to last 
year despite the challenging operating environment. 
The gross premium income grew by 39% from Kshs. 545 
million in 2010 to Kshs. 759 million in 2011. Total assets 
grew by 15% from Kshs. 887 million in 2010 to Kshs. 1,021 
million in 2011. Profits after tax however declined from     
Kshs. 49.2 Million in 2010 to 29.8 million in the current 
period. This is attributed to increase in Policy owner 
benefit from Kshs. 289 Million in 2010 to Kshs.453 Million 
in 2011 mainly due to corporate business claims. 

Future outlook
The year 2011 was the fifth year in implementation of our 
midterm strategy and year 2012 will be the first in our next 
phase of the five year strategic plan period. The company 
has averaged a growth rate of 34% over the last five years 
and we strongly believe we will improve the growth rate 
to 42% over the next five years. The company is in the 
process of implementing a new Enterprise Resource 

Program, the rollout across our entire branch network is 
expected to be completed by the third quarter of 2012. 
Our focus in the next five years is on internal efficiency 
and revenue growth through strategic alliances. We are 
focusing on product innovation, improved customer 
service and effective distribution channels. Our goal 
is to strengthen the institutional capacity of Pioneer 
Assurance Company to achieve its corporate growth. 

I once again express my confidence and wish to 
emphasize that the company is taking the right direction.  
I also wish to assure all the stakeholders that my Board 
and the Management are committed to achieving the 
stability and growth for the benefit of all stakeholders.

Appreciation
I would like to conclude by taking the opportunity on 
behalf of my Board and Management to thank all those 
who contributed to the successful financial year 2011, 
our Clients, Brokers, Agents and other business partners 
for their continued patronage and support during the 
year. I also wish to thank the Management, Agents 
and Staff of Pioneer Assurance for their hard work and 
dedication.  Finally let me express my gratitude to my 
fellow Directors for their unreserved support accorded 
to me during the year.

Bonaventure Omuse
Chairman

“The company has averaged a growth rate of 
34% over the last five years and we strongly 
believe we will improve the growth rate to 
42% over the next five years”
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sTATEMEnT OF COrPOrATE GOVErnAnCE

introduction
The Board of Directors, Pioneer Assurance Company Limited is committed to developing and implementing policies 
that will enhance corporate governance in the company. These policies form the core of the company and ensure that 
there is proper ethics, transparency and accountability in the conduct of business.

Composition
The Board has members with diverse skills, experience and professional background. It consists of the Managing 
Director and six other non executive Directors. No individual in the Board can dominate its decision making. Proper 
information is supplied to the Board in a timely manner, in this regard, notices of Board meetings are circulated at least 
two weeks before Board meetings and detailed Board papers are circulated at least one week before any meeting.

Board Committees
The Board is responsible for the management of the company, and its main responsibility is to give guidance and 
control operations of the company. There are quarterly meetings held by the full Board where strategic and policy issues 
are discussed. Responsibility of the day to day running of the company has been delegated to the Chief Executive 
Officer.  The Board has constituted three committees namely; Audit and compliance committee, Finance and investment 
committee and, Remuneration & appraisal committee. All board committees have charters that govern their operations.

(i) Audit and compliance committee
The committee is comprised of three members and meets on a quarterly basis. 
Membership:-
Mr. John M. Okondo  Chairman  Non Executive Director
Mr. Amai Olubayi  Member Non Executive Director
Mr. Mtalaki Mwashimba  Member Non Executive Director

The Managing Director may attend meetings at the invitation of the committee. The functions of the audit committee 
are outlined in its terms of reference and include; reviewing the reports and following up matters raised by auditors and 
the actuary, to review regulatory environment and develop strategies that are not in conflict with statutory and other 
regulatory requirements.

(ii) Finance and Investment Committee
This committee meets on a quarterly basis and has four members
Membership:-
Mtalaki Mwashimba  Chairman  Non Executive Director
Amai Olubayi   Member  Non Executive Director
Michael Mure   Member  Non Executive Director
Shiraz Jeraj   Member   Non Executive Director
Moses N Kimani  Member  Managing Director

The chief financial officer attends some meetings on invitation by the Board. The functions of the Investments Committee 
are outlined in its terms of reference and include; developing and ensuring the implementation of investment policies 
and guidelines, measuring the company’s performance against set benchmarks, reviewing the company’s investments, 
and approving the acquisition and disposal of capital expenditure.

(iii) Remuneration and appraisal Committee
This committee meets bi annually and has four members
Membership:-
Mr. Bonaventure Omuse  Chairman  Non Executive Director
Amai Olubayi   Member  Non Executive Director
Moses Kimani   Member  Managing Director

The Human Resources and administration manager attends some meetings of the committee on invitation by the 
committee. The functions of the Remuneration and recruitment Committee are outlined in its terms of reference and 
include; reviewing and approving the annual salary reviews and bonuses, approving terms and conditions of service and 
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sTATEMEnT OF COrPOrATE GOVErnAnCE

any amendments thereto, developing guidelines on staffing skills and qualifications required and  reviewing appraisals 
for key management personnel apart from the Managing Director, no other Director or body related to a Director 
receives compensation from the company. Directors are paid a sitting allowance when they attend Board meetings; a 
register which is in the custody of the company secretary is used to confirm attendance. All board members have access 
to the records.

Corporate social responsibility
The company gives special attention to its corporate social responsibility and it is involved in various projects affecting 
society in which it operates in, such as; Improving the health status of the needy and assisting deserving charities. The 
company also caters for the welfare of staff and that of their immediate families. The company has in place a medical 
scheme and last expense cover for the nuclear family of staff and agents, group life and accident covers for the staff. 

Training And recruitment
The company has a well defined training and reward programme on professional courses for its staff. From time to time 
staffs are sent on scheduled short-term training programs that are geared at sorting the identified gaps during appraisals. 
Appraisal of all staff is structured and is done semi annually. The company has in place a structured recruitment policy 
that ensures staff to be recruited posses the necessary skills to adequately serve the insuring public.

Going concern
The Board submits this annual report and audited financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2011. This annual 
report and audited financial statements present, in the opinion of the Directors, a fair, balanced and understandable 
assessment of  the state of affairs of the company’s position and prospect. The Board reports that the business is a going 
concern and it has no reason to believe that the company will not be a going concern into the foreseeable future. 

Bonaventure Omuse       Moses Kimani
Chairman         Managing Director



Page 6

PIONEER ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

DirECTOrs’ rEPOrT

The directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 
2011, which disclose the state of affairs of the Company. 

1. PrinCiPAL ACTiViTiEs

The Company operates in two principal areas of business, according to the nature of products and services offered. It 
provides life insurance and healthcare insurance. Through its life insurance business, the Company offers a wide range 
of long-term insurance products e.g. education, anticipated endowment, whole life, term assurance and unitised 
products. The healthcare insurance provides medical cover to policyholders. The general insurance business is on a 
run–off.

2. rEsuLTs 

The results for the year are shown on page 11.

3. DiViDEnD

The directors do not recommend payment of a dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: KShs 
nil).

4. rEsErVEs

The reserves of the Company are set out on page 9 of these financial statements.

5. DirECTOrs

The directors who held office during the year and to the date of this report were:

Mr. Bonaventure Omuse    Chairman
Mr. Moses N. Kimani   Managing Director (Principal Officer)
Mr. Mtalaki Mwashimba
Mr. Amai Olubayi
Mr. Shiraz A. Jeraj 
Mr. John M. Okondo
Mr. Michael K. Mure

6. AuDiTOrs

Ernst & Young have expressed their willingness to continue in office in accordance with section 159(2) of the Kenyan 
Companies Act.

By order of the Board

Livingstone Associates
Secretary

Date: 27th April 2012
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sTATEMEnT OF DirECTOrs’ rEsPOnsiBiLiTiEs
On THE FinAnCiAL sTATEMEnTs

The Kenya Companies Act requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a 
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at the end of the financial year and of its operating results for 
that year.  It also requires the directors to ensure that the Company keeps proper accounting records which disclose, 
with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the Company.  They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets 
of the Company.  

The directors accept responsibility for the annual financial statements, which have been prepared using appropriate 
accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in conformity with International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Kenyan Companies Act.  The directors are of the opinion 
that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the financial affairs of the Company and of its 
operating results.  The directors further accept responsibility for the maintenance of accounting records which may be 
relied upon in the preparation of financial statements, as well as adequate systems of internal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that the Company will not remain a going concern for at 
least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Bonaventure Omuse
DIRECTOR

Shiraz Jeraj
DIRECTOR

27th April 2012
………………………………………….
Date

 



Page 8

PIONEER ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

I have conducted an actuarial valuation of the life assurance business of Pioneer Assurance Company Limited as at 
31 December 2011. The valuation was conducted in accordance with generally accepted actuarial principles and in 
accordance with the requirements of the Kenyan Insurance Act.

These principles require prudent provision for future outgo under contracts, generally based upon the assumptions 
that current conditions will continue. Provision is therefore not made for all possible contingencies. In completing the 
actuarial valuation, I have relied upon the audited financial statements of the Company.

In my opinion, the life assurance business of the Company was financially sound and the actuarial value of the liabilities 
in respect of all classes of life insurance business did not exceed the amount of funds of the life assurance business at 
31 December 2011.

…………………………………………………….
Actuary

25th April 2012
…………………………………………………….
Date

 

rEPOrT OF THE COnsuLTinG ACTuArY

Mr. Nalin Kapadia
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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Pioneer Assurance Company Limited, which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2011 and the income statement, statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information as set out on pages 10 to 45.

Directors’ responsibility for the Financial statements 
The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Kenyan Companies Act, 
and for such internal control as the directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Pioneer Assurance 
Company Limited as at 31 December 2011, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

 report on Other Legal requirements 
As required by the Kenyan Companies Act we report to you, based on our audit, that:

i. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary 
for the purposes of our audit; 

ii. In our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Company, so far as appears from our examination 
of those books; and 

iii. The Company’s statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income are in agreement with the 
books of account. 

Nairobi

30 th April 2012

rEPOrT OF THE inDEPEnDEnT AuDiTOrs
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  note 2011 2010
   Kshs
AssETs   
Property and equipment 6 15,003,384 14,273,313
Intangible assets 7    2,346,780    1,264,554
Investment property 8 391,600,000  348,791,400
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 9   29,299,598   28,723,071
Policy loans receivable 10 102,409,180 98,143,515
Government securities held to maturity 11 167,364,536 169,844,516
Receivables arising out of reinsurance arrangements 12 37,534,117 16,425,826
Receivables arising out of direct insurance arrangements 13 125,596,709 78,879,968
Reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities 14 8,633,967 13,398,274
Deferred commission 15 26,051,610 9,128,420
Other receivables 16    55,294,779    43,958,582
Deposits with financial institutions 17    43,866,250    49,353,031
Bank and cash balances 40       16,165,518    14,410,269
   
TOTAL AssETs  1,021,166,428 886,594,739

EQuiTY AnD LiABiLiTiEs   

Share capital 18 150,000,000 150,000,000
Retained earnings 19 80,282,758 59,844,459
Statutory fund 20    70,426,587 61,065,848

   
TOTAL EQuiTY   300,709,345 270,910,307
   

LiABiLiTiEs   

Insurance contract liabilities 21 346,242,630 286,345,888
Payable under deposit administration contracts 22 18,269,694 14,444,796
Unit linked payables 23 56,852,662   70,647,269
Outstanding claims 24 104,694,782 109,653,298
Term loan 25      2,572,805      3,811,616
Payables arising from reinsurance arrangements 26 8,358,428 13,042,253
Other payables 27 58,051,493 47,083,965
Unearned premium reserve 28 123,342,384 70,099,208
Tax payable 29(a)       2,072,205          556,139

   
TOTAL LiABiLiTiEs     720,457,083 615,684,432
   
TOTAL EQuiTY AnD LiABiLiTiEs  1,021,166,428  886,594,739
   

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors for issue on 2nd April 2012 and signed on its behalf by:

…………………………………. ………………………………………..              …….……………………………
Chairman Director Principal Officer 

sTATEMEnT OF FinAnCiAL POsiTiOn 
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

Bonaventure Omuse Shiraz Jeraj Moses Kimani
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  note 2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
inCOME   
   
Gross written premiums  759,262,801 545,038,452
Unearned premiums movement   (53,243,176)    27,134,628
   
Gross earned premiums 30(a) 706,019,625 572,173,080
Premium ceded to reinsurers 30(b)   (78,922,315)   (95,300,983)
   
Net earned premiums  627,097,310 476,872,097
   
Investment income 31 77,956,636 42,533,180
Commissions earned 32 11,062,621 19,717,107
Other income 33      (796,107)      3,675,855
   
Total Earned income  715,320,460 542,798,239
   
Claims and policyholder benefits payable 34 (453,914,227) (289,922,843)
Recoverable under reinsurance arrangements 34      68,302,084       57,555,861
Net claims incurred  (385,612,143) (232,366,982)
Operating and other expenses 35 (149,413,051) (136,752,605)
Commission payable 36 (141,598,340) (118,222,100)
   
Profit before tax 37 38,696,926 55,456,552
    
Income tax expense 29(b)    (8,897,888)    (6,280,491)
   
OTHEr COMPrEHEnsiVE inCOME                        -                      -
   
TOTAL COMPrEHEnsiVE inCOME    29,799,038 49,176,061
   
Earnings per share (basic and diluted) 39  19.87  32.78

sTATEMEnT OF COMPrEHEnsiVE inCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
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sTATEMEnT OF CHAnGEs in EQuiTY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

 note share retained statutory  
   capital earnings Fund Total
  Kshs Kshs Kshs  Kshs
     
As at 1 January 2010  150,000,000 41,508,491 30,225,755 221,734,246
     
Profit for the year                       -    49,176,061 - 49,176,061
     
Transfer to shareholders   12,554,100 (12,554,100) -
     
Transfer to statutory fund 20                        -    (43,394,193) 43,394,193                      -
     
At 31 December 2010   150,000,000  59,844,459  61,065,848 270,910,307
     
As at 1 January 2011  150,000,000 59,844,459 61,065,848 270,910,307
     
Profit for the year                       -    29,799,038 - 29,799,038
     
Transfer to shareholders  - 30,000,000 (30,000,000) -
     
Transfer to statutory fund 20                        -    (39,360,739) 39,360,739                      -
     
At 31 December 2011   150,000,000  80,282,758  70,426,587 300,709,345
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sTATEMEnT OF CAsH FLOWs 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

  2011 2010
 note Kshs Kshs

Cash flows from operating activities:   
Profit before tax  38,696,926 55,456,552
   
Adjustment for:   
Depreciation  3,807,619 2,815,196
Amortisation  684,478 786,144
Gain on revaluation of investment property  (42,808,600) -
Gain on disposal of property  (816,823) (3,500)
Fair value loss / (gain) on quoted investments  3,664,296 (5,910,543)
Fair value loss / (gain)  unit trust investments  943,754 (694,058)
Technical provisions  36,125,776 (19,177,119)
Interest on loans  471,571 234,993
Change in actuarial liabilities 34 59,896,742 (1,547,192)
   
Cash generated from operations  100,665,739 31,960,473
   
Increase in receivables  (79,161,227) (21,281,172)
(Decrease)/Increase in payables  (3,686,005) 42,622,279
Tax paid    (7,381,822) (9,242,228)
   
net cash flow from operating activities  10,436,685 44,059,352
   
Cash flows from investing activities;   
Purchase of equipment  (4,601,010) (9,089,934)
Purchase of intangible assets  (1,795,770) (45,240)
Purchase of investment property  - (4,291,400)
Investment in government securities  2,479,980 (26,781,661)
Investment in quoted equities  (2,147,094) -
Investments in deposit institutions  14,244,849 (6,161,481)
Investment in unit trusts   (3,037,483) (3,632,807)
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment  816,823 3,500
Policy loan advanced  (11,226,327) (12,693,269)
Policy loan repayment    7,053,045     7,573,266
   
net cash generated / (used in) investing activities      1,787,013  (55,119,026)
   
Cash flows from financing activities   
Borrowings  - 4,200,000
Interest on loans  (471,571) (234,993)
Loan repayments     (1,238,811)     (388,384)
   
Cash (used in) / generated from financing activities     (1,710,382)   3,576,623
   
Increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  10,513,316 (7,483,051)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year     43,798,322 51,281,373

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 40  54,311,638 43,798,322

Technical provisions comprise of the respective non cash movements arising from reinsurers’ share of reinsurance liabilities (note 
14), deferred commissions (note 15) and unearned premium reserves (note 28).
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a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and 
the requirements of the Kenyan Companies Act. The financial 
statements are prepared on the historical cost convention 
as modified by the revaluation of certain equipment, 
marketable securities and investment property at fair value, 
impaired assets at their recoverable amounts and actuarially 
determined liabilities at their present value. The preparation 
of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use 
of estimates and assumptions. It also requires management 
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the 
Company’s accounting policies.

b) new accounting standards, amendments and interpre-
tations 

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those 
of the previous financial year. Amendments resulting from 
Improvements to IFRSs to the following standards did not 
have any impact on the accounting policies, financial position 
or performance of the Company:

•	 IFRS 1 First-time Adoption transitional provisions of IFRS 
7 disclosures (Amendment) – 1 July 2010

•	 IAS 24 Related party disclosures (Amendment) – 1 
January 2011

•	 IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation – Classification 
of Rights Issues (Amendment) – 1 February 2010

•	 IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity 
Instruments – 1 July 2010

•	 IFRIC 14 Prepayments of a minimum funding requirement 
(Amendment)

•	 Improvements to IFRSs (issued in May 2010)

The adoption of the standards or interpretations is described 
below: 
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial 
Reporting Standards (Amendment) 
The amendment to IFRS 1 is effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2010. The amendment allows 
first-time adopters to utilise the transitional provisions of 
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures as they relate to the 
March 2009 amendments to the standard. These provisions 
give relief from providing comparative information in the 
disclosures required by the amendments in the first year of 
application. To achieve this, the transitional provisions in IFRS 
7 were also amended. This is not applicable to the Company 
as it is not a first-time adopter.

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (Amendment)
The amended standard is effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2011. It clarified and simplifies 
the definition of a related party to simplify the identification 

of such relationships and to eliminate inconsistencies in 
its application. The revised standard introduces a partial 
exemption of disclosure requirements for government 
related entities. The adoption of the amendment did not have 
any impact on the financial position or performance of the 
Company as the definitions were already applied according 
to these amendments and the Company is not government 
related.

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation – Classification of 
Rights Issues (Amendment)
The amendment to IAS 32 is effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 February 2010 and amended the 
definition of a financial liability. The amendment addresses 
the accounting for rights issues that are denominated in a 
currency other than the functional currency of the issuer. 
Provided certain conditions are met, such rights issues are 
now classified as equity regardless of the currency in which the 
exercise price is denominated. Previously, these issues had 
to be accounted for as derivative liabilities. The amendment 
applies retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8 ‘Accounting 
policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors’. 
The amendment had no effect on the financial position or 
performance of the Company because the Company does 
not have these types of instruments.

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity 
Instruments
IFRIC 19 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
1 July 2010. The interpretation clarifies the accounting by an 
entity when the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated 
and result in the entity issuing equity instruments to a creditor 
of the entity to extinguish all or part of the financial liability 
(debt for equity swap). The interpretation clarifies that equity 
instruments issued to a creditor to extinguish a financial 
liability qualify as consideration paid. The equity instruments 
issued are measured at their fair value. In case that this cannot 
be reliably measured, the instruments are measured at the 
fair value of the liability extinguished. Any gain or loss is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss. This interpretation 
had no impact on the Company, as the Company didn’t issue 
any equity instruments as payment for financial liabilities.

IFRIC 14 Prepayments of a minimum funding requirement 
(Amendment)
The amendment to IFRIC 14 is effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2011 with retrospective 
application. The amendment corrects an unintended 
consequence of IFRIC 14, ‘IAS 19 – The limit on a defined benefit 
asset, minimum funding requirements and their interaction’. 
Without the amendments, entities are not permitted to 
recognise as an asset some voluntary prepayments for 
minimum funding contributions. The amendment provides 

1. siGniFiCAnT ACCOunTinG POLiCiEs

nOTEs TO THE FinAnCiAL sTATEMEnTs 
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guidance on assessing the recoverable amount of a net 
pension asset. The amendment permits an entity to treat the 
prepayment of a minimum funding requirement as an asset. 
The Company does not have any defined benefit plans and as 
such were not impacted by this amendment.

improvements issued in May 2010
•	 IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial 

Reporting Standards
   

 . Accounting policy changes in the year of adoption - 
The amendment clarifies that, if a first-time adopter 
changes its accounting policies or its use of the 
exemptions in IFRS 1 after it has published an interim 
financial report in accordance with IAS 34 Interim 
Financial Reporting, it has to explain those changes 
and update the reconciliations between previous 
GAAP and IFRS.

 . Revaluation basis as deemed cost - The amendment 
allows first-time adopters to use an event-driven 
fair value as deemed cost, even if the event occurs 
after the date of transition, but before the first IFRS 
financial statements are issued. When such re-
measurement occurs after the date of transition to 
IFRS, but during the period covered by its first IFRS 
financial statements the adjustment is recognised 
directly in retained earnings (or if appropriate, 
another category of equity).

•	 IFRS 3 Business Combinations (effective from 1 July 
2010):

 . Transition requirements for contingent consideration 
from a business combination that occurred before 
the effective date of the revised IFRS. - The 
amendment clarifies that the amendments to IFRS 7 
Financial Instruments: Disclosures, IAS 32 Financial 
Instruments: Presentation and IAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, that 
eliminate the exemption for contingent consideration, 
do not apply to contingent consideration that arose 
from business combinations whose acquisition dates 
precede the application of IFRS 3 (as revised in 2008). 
The amendment is applied retrospectively. 

 
•	 IFRS 3 Business Combinations (effective from 1 July 

2010):
 .  Measurement of non-controlling interests (NCI) - The 

amendment limits the scope of the measurement 
choices only to the components of NCI that are 
present ownership interests which entitle their 
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net 

assets, in the event of liquidation. Other components 
of NCI are measured at their acquisition date fair 
value, unless another measurement basis is required 
by another IFRS.

 .  Un-replaced and voluntarily replaced share-based 
payment awards - The amendment requires an 
entity (in a business combination) to account for 
the replacement of the acquiree’s share-based 
payment transactions (whether by obligation or 
voluntarily), i.e., split between consideration and 
post-combination expenses. However, if the entity 
replaces the acquiree’s awards that expire as a 
consequence of the business combination, these are 
recognised as post-combination expenses. 

•	 IFRS 7 Financial Instruments — Disclosures: The 
amendment was intended to simplify the disclosures 
provided by reducing the volume of disclosures around 
collateral held and improving disclosures by requiring 
qualitative information to put the quantitative information 
in context. The Company reflects the revised disclosure 
requirements in the notes.

•	 IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: The 
amendment clarifies that an entity will present an analysis 
of other comprehensive income for each component of 
equity, either in the statement of changes in equity or in 
the notes to the financial statements. The amendment is 
applied retrospectively.

•	 IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 
(effective from 1 July 2010): The amendment clarifies 
that the consequential amendments from IAS 27 made 
to IAS 21 The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange 
Rates, IAS 28 Investments in Associates and IAS 31 
Interests in Joint Ventures apply prospectively for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 or earlier when 
IAS 27 is applied earlier. The amendment is applied 
retrospectively. 

•	 IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes - Fair value of 
award credit

•	 The amendment clarifies that when the fair value of award 
credits is measured based on the value of the awards for 
which they could be redeemed, the amount of discounts 
or incentives otherwise granted to customers not 
participating in the award credit scheme is to be taken 
into account. The amendment is applied retrospectively. 
This is not applicable to the Company as the Company 
does not enter into customer loyalty programmes.
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•	 IAS 34 Interim Financial Statements - Significant events 
and transactions

The amendment provides guidance to illustrate how to 
apply disclosure principles in IAS 34 and add disclosure 
requirements around circumstances likely to affect fair values 
of financial instruments and their classification.

Standards issued but not yet effective
Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of 
issuance of the Company’s financial statements are listed 
below. This listing is of standards and interpretations issued, 
which the Company reasonably expects to be applicable at a 
future date. The Company intends to adopt those standards 
when they become effective. The Company expects that 
adoption of these standards, amendments and interpretations 
in most cases not to have any significant impact on the 
Company’s financial position or performance in the period of 
initial application but additional disclosures will be required. 
In cases where it will have an impact the Company is still 
assessing the possible impact.

IAS 1 Financial statement presentation - Presentation of 
Items of Other Comprehensive Income (Amendment)
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2012 and requires that items of other 
comprehensive income be grouped in items that would be 
reclassified to profit or loss at a future point and items that 
will never be reclassified. The amendment does not change 
the nature of items that are currently recognised in OCI, nor 
does it impact the determination of whether items of OCI 
are reclassified through profit or loss in future periods. The 
amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 July 2012.  In terms of classification the revaluation 
reserve would not be reclassified and the available-for-sale 
reserve would.

IAS 12 Income taxes (Amendment)
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2012 and introduces a rebuttable presumption 
that deferred tax on investment properties measured at fair 
value will be recognised on a sale basis, unless an entity has a 
business model that would indicate the investment property 
will be consumed in the business. If consumed a use basis 
should be adopted. This amendment will have no impact on 
the Company after initial application.

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation (Amendment) – 
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
The IASB issued an amendment to clarify the meaning 
of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognised amounts” (IAS 32.42(a)).  This means that the right 
of set-off:
 - Must not be contingent on a future event; and

 - Must be legally enforceable in all of the following 
circumstances:
 · The normal course of business;
 · The event of default; and
 · The event of insolvency or bankruptcy

Of the entity and all of the counterparties.
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2014 and the Company is still in the process 
of determining how it will impact the Statement of Financial 
Position and Income Statement upon adoption.
 
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Transfer of 
financial assets (Amendment)
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 July 2011. The amendment requires additional 
quantitative and qualitative disclosures relating to transfers of 
financial assets, where:
•	 Financial assets are derecognised in their entirety, but 

where the entity has a continuing involvement in them 
(e.g., options or guarantees on the transferred assets)

•	 Financial assets are not derecognised in their entirety 
- The amendments may be applied earlier than 
the effective date and this fact must be disclosed. 
Comparative disclosures are not required for any period 
beginning before the effective date.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendment) 
– Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities
The amendment amends the required disclosures to include 
information that will enable users of an entity’s financial 
statements to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting 
arrangements, including rights of set-off associated with the 
entity’s recognised financial assets and recognised financial 
liabilities, on the entity’s financial position.  The amendment 
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2013 and the Company is still in the process of determining 
how it will impact the note disclosures upon adoption.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement
IFRS 9 as issued reflects the first phase of the IASBs work on 
the replacement of IAS 39 and applies to classification and 
measurement of financial assets and liabilities as defined in 
IAS 32. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2015. In subsequent phases, the 
Board will address impairment and hedge accounting. The 
completion of this project is expected during the first half of 
2013. The adoption of the first phase of IFRS 9 will primarily 
have an effect on the classification and measurement of the 
Company’s financial assets but will potentially have no impact 
on classification and measurements of financial liabilities. The 
Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting IFRS 9, 
however, the impact of adoption depends on the assets held 
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1. siGniFiCAnT ACCOunTinG POLiCiEs (continued)

by the Company at the date of adoption, it is not practical to 
quantify the effect.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
IFRS 13 establishes a single framework for all fair value 
measurement (financial and non-financial assets and 
liabilities) when fair value is required or permitted by IFRS. 
IFRS 13 does not change when an entity is required to use 
fair value but rather describes how to measure fair value 
under IFRS when it is permitted or required by IFRS. There 
are also consequential amendments to other standards to 
delete specific requirements for determining fair value. The 
Company will need to consider the new requirements to 
determine fair values going forward.  IFRS 13 will be effective 
for the Company 1 July 2013.

c) underwriting results
i. The outstanding claims represent claims arising from 

incidents occurring prior to the accounting date but not 
settled at the time the records for the year are closed. 
The short term business is on run off.

ii. Results of the Company’s share of the two Kenya Motor 
Insurance Pools are accounted for in the revenue 
accounts in accordance with the Pool’s accounting year 
which runs from October to September of the following 
year. As a result, the Pool’s results for the year have been 
accounted for on an estimated basis.

iii. Premium income on medical business is recognised 
on assumption of risks, and includes estimates of 
premiums due but not yet received less unearned 
premium. Unearned premiums represent the proportion 
of the premiums written in periods up to the accounting 
date that relates to the unexpired terms of policies in 
force at the reporting date, and is computed using the 
1/24ths method. Reinsurance - The Company cedes 
insurance risk in the normal course of business for all 
of its businesses. Ceded reinsurance arrangements 
do not relieve the Company from its obligations to 
policyholders. Reinsurance assets represent balances due 
from reinsurance companies. Amounts recoverable from 
reinsurers are estimated in manner consistent with the 
outstanding claims provision or settled claims associated 
with the reinsurer’s policies and are in accordance with 
the related reinsurance contract.

iv. An impairment review is performed at each reporting 
date or more frequently when an indication of impairment 
arises during the reporting year. Impairment losses are 
recorded in the income statement as and when they 
arise.

v. Income recognition
Premium income on life and medical policies relates to 
business incepted during the year, and includes estimates 

of premiums due but not yet received, less an allowance for 
estimated lapses. 

Group life premiums are accounted for when receivable and 
collection is reasonably assured.

Commissions receivable are recognised as income in the 
period in which they are earned.

Investment income - Interest income is recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income as it accrues and is 
calculated by using the effective interest rate method. Fees 
and commissions that are an integral part of the effective 
yield of the financial asset or liability are recognised as an 
adjustment to the effective interest rate of the instrument. 
Investment income also includes dividend income which 
is recognised when the right to receive the payment is 
established. 

Rental income - Rental income arising from operating leases 
on investment properties is accounted for on a straight line 
basis over the lease terms.

Fees and commission income - Insurance and investment 
contract policyholders are charged for policy administration 
services, investment management services, surrenders and 
other contract fees. These fees are recognised as revenue 
over the period in which the related services are performed. 
If the fees are for services provided in future periods then 
they are deferred and recognised over those future periods. 

vi. Benefits and Claims incurred
Claims incurred comprise all claims occurring during the year, 
whether reported or not and changes in the provision for 
outstanding claims. Claims paid represent all payments made 
during the year, whether arising from events during that or 
earlier years. Outstanding claims represent the estimated 
ultimate cost of settling all claims arising from incidents 
occurring prior to the reporting date, but not settled at that 
date. 

vii. Claims arising on maturing policies are recognised when 
the claim becomes due for payment.  Death claims are 
accounted for on notification. Surrenders are accounted 
for on payment.

viii.  Actuarial valuation
The Company determines its liabilities on long term insurance 
contracts using the Net Premium Valuation (‘NPV’) method.  
This method was considered to be appropriate because it 
arrives at prudent and conservative actuarial liabilities at the 
valuation date. In addition, the actuarial reserves arrived at 
using this method and the assumptions used will be no less 
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than those arrived at using the minimum valuation basis set 
out in Insurance Act, 1997. The NPV method makes explicit 
assumptions in respect of expected future deaths and 
investment returns.  The method makes implicit assumptions 
regarding expected experience in respect of lapses, expenses, 
bonuses and a margin for uncertainty on these assumptions.

The latest actuarial valuation of the Company’s life fund 
was undertaken as at 31 December 2011 by the consulting 
actuary. Surpluses arising are allocated by the directors on 
the advice of the actuaries and in accordance with the Articles 
of Association, to policyholders’ bonuses and the statement 
of comprehensive income. Any balance remaining is carried 
forward in the Life Fund.

d) Expenses and commissions
Expenses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
income when decrease in future economic benefits related 
to a decrease in an asset or an increase of a liability has 
arisen that can be measured reliably. This means, in effect, 
that recognition of expenses occurs simultaneously with the 
recognition of an increase in liabilities or a decrease in assets 
(for example, the accrual of employee entitlements or the 
depreciation of equipment). 

When economic benefits are expected to arise over several 
accounting periods and the association with income can only 
be broadly or indirectly determined expenses are recognised 
in the statement of comprehensive income on the basis of 
systematic and rational allocation procedures. This is often 
necessary in recognising the equipment associated with the 
using up of assets such as property, plant and equipment in 
such cases the expense is referred to as a depreciation or 
amortisation. These allocation procedures are intended to 
recognise expenses in the accounting periods in which the 
economic benefits associated with these items are consumed 
or expire.

An expense is recognised immediately in the statement of 
comprehensive income when expenditure produces no future 
economic benefits or when, and to the extent that, future 
economic benefits do not qualify, or cease to qualify, for 
recognition in the statement of financial position as an asset.

c) Deposit administration contracts
The Company administers the funds of its staff retirement 
benefit scheme and pension on annuity for individual 
members. The liability of the Company to the Scheme and 
pension on annuity are included in the statement of financial 
position. 

d) Property, equipment and depreciation
All categories of property and equipment are initially 

recognised at cost. Cost includes expenditure directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the assets. 
These are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount 
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when 
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can 
be measured reliably. Day-to-day repairs and maintenance 
expenses are charged to the statement of comprehensive 
income in the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method to 
write down the cost of each asset to its residual value over its 
estimated useful life using the following annual rates:

Motor vehicles    20%
Computers and office equipment  20%
Furniture, fixtures and fittings  12½%

The assets residual values useful lives and methods of 
depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and 
adjusted prospectively as appropriate at each financial year 
end.
Impairment reviews are performed when there are indicators 
that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Impairment 
losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
income as an expense. 
An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon 
disposal or where no future economic benefits are expected 
from its use or disposed. Gains and losses on disposal of 
property and equipment are determined by reference to their 
carrying amounts and are taken into account in determining 
operating profit.

e) intangible assets
Software licence costs and computer software that is not an 
integral part of the related hardware are initially recognised 
at cost, and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Costs that 
are directly attributable to the production of identifiable 
computer software products controlled by the company are 
recognised as intangible assets. Amortisation is calculated 
using the straight line method to write down the cost of 
each licence or item of software to its residual value over its 
estimated useful life (three to five years).

Amortisation begins when the asset is available for use, i.e. 
when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be 
capable of operating in the manner intended by management, 
even when idle. Amortisation ceases at the earlier of the date 
that the asset is classified as held for sale and the date that 
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1. siGniFiCAnT ACCOunTinG POLiCiEs (continued)

the asset is derecognised and ceases temporarily while the 
residual value exceeds or is equal to the carrying value

An intangible asset shall be derecognised on disposal or 
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use 
or disposal.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible 
asset are measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 
when the asset is derecognised.

e) investment property
Investment properties comprise land and buildings and 
parts of buildings held to earn rentals and/or for capital 
appreciation. Investment property is initially recognised at 
cost including the transaction costs. Subsequently, investment 
property is carried at fair value representing the open market 
value at the statement of financial position date determined 
by annual valuations carried out by external registered 
valuers/directors. Gains or losses arising from changes in the 
fair value are included in determining the profit or loss for the 
year to which they relate.

The carrying amount includes the cost of replacing part of an 
existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred 
if the recognition criteria are met; and excludes the costs of 
day-to-day servicing of an investment property. 

Subsequent expenditure on investment property where such 
expenditure increases the future economic value in excess 
of the original assessed standard of performance is added 
to the carrying amount of the investment property. All other 
subsequent expenditure is recognised as an expense in the 
year in which it is incurred.
Investment properties are not subject to depreciation. 
Changes in their carrying amount between reporting dates 
are recorded through the statement of comprehensive 
income.

Investment properties are derecognised when either they 
have been disposed off or when the investment property is 
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic 
benefit is expected from its disposal. On disposal of an 
investment property, the difference between the disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or credited to 
statement of comprehensive income.

f) investments and other financial assets
The Company classifies its investments into financial assets 
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and 
held-to-maturity financial assets. The classification depends 

on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. 
Management determines the classification of its investments 
at initial recognition and re-evaluates this at every reporting 
date.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include 
financial assets held for trading and those designated 
upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. 
Investments typically bought with the intention to sell in the 
near future are classified as held for trading. This category 
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the 
company that are not designated as hedging instruments 
in hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39. Derivatives, 
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified 
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective 
hedging instruments. For investments designated as at fair 
value through profit or loss, the following criteria must be 
met:

•	 The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the 
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from 
measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or 
losses on a different basis

Or
•	 The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial 

assets, financial liabilities, or both, which are managed 
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, 
in accordance with a documented risk management or 
investment strategy.

These investments are initially recorded at fair value. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are remeasured at fair 
value. Changes in fair value are recorded in ‘Fair value gains 
and losses’. Interest is accrued and presented in ‘Investment 
income’ or ‘Finance cost’, respectively, using the effective 
interest rate (EIR).

The Company evaluates its financial assets at fair value 
through profit and loss (held for trading) whether the intent 
to sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When the 
Company is unable to trade these financial assets due to 
inactive markets and management’s intent to sell them in the 
foreseeable future significantly changes, the Company may 
elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances. 
The reclassification to loans and receivables, available-for-sale 
or held to maturity depends on the nature of the asset. This 
evaluation does not affect any financial assets designated at 
fair value through profit or loss using the fair value option at 
designation.

(ii) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with 
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fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 
active market other than those that the Company intends to 
sell in the short term or that it has designated as at fair value 
through income or available-for-sale. Receivables arising 
from insurance contracts are also classified in this category 
and are reviewed for impairment as part of the impairment 
review of loans and receivables.

These investments are initially recognised at cost, being the 
fair value of the consideration paid for the acquisition of the 
investment. All transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition are also included in the cost of the investment. 
After initial measurement, loans and receivables are 
measured at amortised cost, using the EIR, less allowance 
for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or 
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation 
is included in ‘finance income’ in the income statement. Gains 
and losses are recognised in the income statement when the 
investments are derecognised or impaired, as well as through 
the amortisation process.

(iii) Held to maturity financial assets
Held to maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial 
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed 
maturities – other than those that meet the definition of loans 
and receivables – that the Company’s management has the 
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

After initial measurement, held to maturity financial assets are 
measured at amortised cost, using the EIR, less impairment. 
The EIR amortisation is included in ‘investment income’ in the 
income statement. Gains and losses are recognised in the 
income statement when the investments are derecognised or 
impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

i) unit linked investment contracts
These are contracts designated as contracts at fair value 
through profit and loss. The benefits offered under these 
contracts are based on the return on a portfolio of equities 
and debt securities managed by professional investment 
managers. The maturity value of the financial liabilities is 
determined by the fair value of the linked assets. There 
will be no difference between the carrying amount and 
the maturity amount at maturity date. Fees charged and 
investment income received is recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income when earned.

These liabilities are derecognised when the related contracts 
are settled or paid.

j) Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are carried at their original invoiced amount 

less an estimate made for bad and doubtful receivables 
based on a review of all outstanding amounts, on an account 
by account basis, at the year end. Bad debts are written off in 
the year in which they are identified as irrecoverable.
the reporting date.

k) Fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded 
in organized financial markets is determined by reference to 
quoted market bid prices at the close of business on

l) impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there 
is any objective evidence that a financial asset or Company of 
financial assets is impaired.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on asset 
carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of 
the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future 
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been 
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective 
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial 
recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is written down through use 
of an allowance account.  The amount of the loss is recognised 
through the statement of comprehensive income.

When there is a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale 
financial asset whose fair value gains and losses have been 
recognised directly in equity and there is objective evidence 
that the asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been 
recognised directly in equity is removed from equity and 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income even 
though the financial asset has not been derecognised.
Impairment losses recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income for an investment in an equity 
instrument classified as available for sale are not reversed.

m) Derecognition of financial assets
Financial assets (or a portion thereof) are de-recognised 
when the Company’s rights to the cash flows expire or 
when the Company transfers substantially all the risks and 
rewards related to the financial asset or when the Company 
loses control of the financial asset. On de- recognition, the 
difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset 
and proceeds receivable and any prior adjustment to reflect 
fair value that had been reported in equity are included 
in the statement of comprehensive income.  Financial 
liabilities (or a portion thereof) are de-recognised when the 
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled 
or expires. On de-recognition, the difference between the 
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carrying amount of the financial liability, including related un-
amortised costs and amounts paid for it, are included in the 
statement of comprehensive income.

n) Deferred commissions
A proportion of commissions’ payable in medical business is 
deferred and amortised over the period in which the related 
premium is earned.

o) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in 
hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of 
three months or less in the reporting. For the purpose of 
the cash flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and 
cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts.

p) Accounts payables
Accounts payable are non interest bearing financial liabilities 
and are carried at amortised cost, which is measured at the 
fair or contractual value of the consideration to be paid 
in future in respect of goods and services supplied by the 
suppliers, whether billed to the Company or not, less any 
payments made to the suppliers.

q) retirement benefit obligations
(i) Defined contribution plan
The Company operates a defined contribution retirement 
benefit scheme for qualifying employees. The retirement 
plan is funded by payments from both employees and the 
Company.

The Company also contributes to a statutory defined 
contribution pension scheme, the National Social Security 
Fund (NSSF). Contributions are determined by the local 
statute and currently limited to KShs. 200 per employee per 
month.

The Company’s contributions to the defined contribution 
pension scheme are charged to statement of comprehensive 
income in the year to which they relate.

(ii) Other entitlements
The employees were previously entitled to gratuity and long 
service awards which were recognised when they accrue to 
employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability 
for such entitlements as a result of services rendered by 
employees up to the reporting date. 

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when 
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the liability 
for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees 
up to the reporting date.

r) share capital
Ordinary shares are recognised at par value and classified as 
‘share capital’ in equity.

s) statutory fund.
The statutory reserve represents accumulated life fund 
inclusive of surpluses whose distribution is subject to 
restrictions imposed by the Insurance Act. The Act restricts 
the amounts of surpluses of the long-term business available 
for distribution to shareholders to 30% actuarially determined 
valuation surpluses of the life business. 

Movements in the statutory reserve are shown in the statement 
of changes in equity on page 9.

t) Earnings per share
The Company presents basic earnings per share (EPS) data 
for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing 
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of 
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding during the year. 
 
u) Taxation
Income tax expense is the aggregate amount charged/ 
(credited) in respect of current tax and deferred tax in 
determining the profit or loss for the year. Tax is recognised 
in the statement of comprehensive income except when it 
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income, 
in which case it is also recognised in other comprehensive 
income, or to items recognised directly in equity, in which 
case it is also recognised directly in equity.

Current Income tax
Current income tax is the amount of income tax payable 
on the taxable profit for the year determined in accordance 
with the Kenyan Income Tax Act. The tax rates and tax laws 
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or 
substantively enacted as at the reporting date.

Deferred Income tax
Deferred income tax is provided in full on all temporary 
differences except those arising on the initial recognition of 
an asset or liability, other than a business combination, that at 
the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting nor 
taxable profit or loss. 

Deferred income tax is determined using the liability method 
on all temporary differences arising between the tax bases 
of assets and liabilities and their carrying values for financial 
reporting purposes, using tax rates and laws enacted or 
substantively enacted at the statement of financial position 
date and expected to apply when the related deferred income 
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tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent 
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

v) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present 
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, 
and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. Where the Company expects some or all of a 
provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised 
as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is 
virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is 

presented in the statement of comprehensive income net of 
any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money 
is material, provisions are discounting using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific 
to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in 
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a 
finance cost.

w) Events after the reporting date.
The financial statements are adjusted to reflect events that 
occurred between the reporting date and the date when the 
financial statements are authorised for issue, provided they 
give evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting 
date. Events that are indicative of conditions that arose after 
the reporting date are disclosed, but do not result in an 
adjustment of the financial statements themselves.
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Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are 
based on historical experience and other factors, including 
experience of future events that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances.

i. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

a) Actuarial value of policy liabilities
Critical assumptions are made by the actuary in determining 
the present value of actuarial liabilities. These assumptions 
are set out in note 4 (risk management).

b) Property and equipment
Critical estimates are made by the directors in determining 
depreciation rates for property, plant and equipment. The 
rates used are set out in accounting policy (f).

c) Going concern
The Company’s management has made an assessment of 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and is 
satisfied that the Company has the resources to continue as 
a going concern. Furthermore, the management is not aware 
of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt 
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared 
on the going concern basis.

d) Impairment losses on policy loans receivables
The Company reviews its policy loans receivables at each 
reporting date to assess whether an allowance for impairment 
should be recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
income. In particular, judgement by the directors is required 
in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash 
flows when determining the level of allowance required. Such 
estimates are based on the assumptions about a number 
of factors and may result to future changes in impairment 
charge.

e) Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair values of the financial assets and liabilities 
recorded on the Statement of Financial Position cannot be 
derived from active markets, they are determined using a 
variety of valuation techniques that include the use of recent 
arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments  that  
are  substantially  the  same, discounted cash  flow analysis  
and option  pricing models  refined  to reflect the issuer’s 
specific circumstances.. The input to these models is taken 
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not 
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing 
fair values. 

f) Income taxes
The Company is subject to income taxes under the Kenya 
Income Tax Act. Significant estimates are required in 
determining the provision for income taxes. There are many 
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax 
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of 
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is 
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such 
differences will impact the income tax and the deferred tax 
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

ii. Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting 
policies

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, 
management has made judgements in determining:

a) The classification of financial assets 
b) Whether assets are impaired.
c) Whether land and buildings meet the criteria to be 
classified as investment property.
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The Company operates in two principal areas of business providing life assurance and medical insurance. General insurance 
business is on run off. 

a) Primary segment
At 31 December 2011, the Company’s operating businesses are managed and reported separately according to the nature of 
products and services offered, with each business segment representing a strategic business unit that offers varying products. This 
is the basis on which the Company reports its primary segment information.

(i) Segment income statement: 

As at 31 December 2011
 Life Medical General 
 assurance insurance insurance 
 business business business Total
 Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
    
Gross written premiums 507,997,528 251,265,273                   -     759,262,801
    
Net earned premiums 451,428,089 175,669,221 -     627,097,310
    
Other income  42,847,672   46,171,585     (796,107)     88,223,150
    
Total income 494,275,761 221,840,806     (796,107) 715,320,460
    
Policyholder benefits 202,789,730 182,822,413 - 385,612,143
Operating expenses 252,125,292   38,886,099                   - 291,011,391
    
Total Expenses 454,915,022 221,708,512                   -  676,623,534
    
Profit before tax 39,360,739 132,294 - 38,696,926
Income tax expense   (9,000,000)       102,112                       -   (8,897,888)
    
Profit for the year 30,360,739       234,406     (796,107) 29,799,038

As at 31 December 2010

Gross written premiums 412,482,273 132,556,179                     -     545,038,452
    
Net earned premiums 347,474,695 129,397,402 -     476,872,097
    
Other income  52,630,182     9,620,105 3,675,855 65,926,142
    
Total income 400,104,877 139,017,402 3,675,855 542,798,239
    
Policyholder benefits 139,383,317 92,983,665 - 232,366,982
Operating expenses 217,327,367   37,647,338                   - 254,974,705
    
Total Expenses 356,710,684 130,631,003                   -  487,341,687
    
Profit before tax 43,394,193 8,386,504 3,675,855 55,456,552
Income tax expense   (3,766,230)   (2,514,261)                      - (6,280,491)
    
Profit for the year 39,627,963   5,872,243 3,675,855 49,176,061
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(ii) Segment assets as at 31 December 2011

As at 31 December 2011 Life Medical General 
 assurance insurance insurance 
 business business business Total
 Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
    
Non-current assets                  - 17,350,166               - 17,350,166
Financial assets 702,818,858 47,886,224               - 750,705,082
Insurance receivables 60,878,720 64,717,989               - 125,596,709
Reinsurance assets 37,534,117 2,131,371 6,502,596 46,168,084
Other assets    48,670,504 32,675,883                  -        81,346,387
    
TOTAL ASSETS 849,902,199 164,761,633 6,502,596 1,021,166,428
    
As at 31 December 2010
    2010
 Life Medical General 
 assurance insurance insurance 
 business Business business Total
 KShs KShs KShs KShs
    
Non-current assets                  - 15,537,867               - 15,537,867
Financial assets 662,556,198 46,709,604               - 709,265,802
Insurance receivables 42,343,422 36,536,546               - 78,879,968
Reinsurance assets - 23,321,504 6,502,596 29,824,100
Other assets    37,422,253 15,664,749                    -    53,087,002
    
TOTAL ASSETS 742,321,873 137,770,270 6,502,596 886,594,739

b) secondary segment
The Company has branches spread over various towns in Kenya. These are not separate reporting entities hence their results are 
aggregated.

3. sEGMEnT inFOrMATiOn (continued)

nOTEs TO THE FinAnCiAL sTATEMEnTs  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011



Page 26

PIONEER ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

The principal risk that the Company faces under insurance 
contracts is that the actual claims and benefits payments or 
the timing thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced 
by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits 
paid and subsequent development of long-term claims. 
Therefore, the objective of the Company is to ensure that 
sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities. The 
above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a 
large portfolio of insurance products. The variability of risks 
is also improved by careful selection and implementation 
of underwriting strategy guidelines, as well as the use of 
reinsurance arrangements. The main risks the Company is 
exposed to are as follows: 

•	 Mortality risk - risk of loss arising due to policyholder 
death experience being different than expected 

•	 Morbidity risk - risk of loss arising due to policyholder 
health experience being different than expected 

•	 Longevity risk - risk of loss arising due to the annuitant 
living longer than expected. 

•	 Investment return risk-risk of loss arising from actual 
returns being different than expected 

•	 Expense risk - risk of loss arising from actual expenses 
being different than expected

•	 Policyholder decision risk-risk of loss arising due to 
policyholder experiences (lapses and surrenders) being 
different than expected.

The key assumptions for non life (medical business) includes 
assumptions in respect of average claim costs, claim handling 
costs, claim inflation factors and claim numbers for each 
year. Additional qualitative judgements are used to assess 
the extent to which past trends may not apply in future, for 
example one off changes in market factor such as public 
attitude to claiming, economic conditions as well as internal 
factors such as portfolio mix, policy conditions and claims 
handling procedures. Judgement is further used to assess the 
extent to which external factors such as judicial decisions and 
government legislation affect the estimates.

The key assumptions for life business to which the estimation 
of liabilities is particularly sensitive are summarised below. 
The same assumptions were used in 2010.

a) Mortality and morbidity rates
The Company uses the KE2001-2003 ultimate table of assured 
lives as a base table of standard mortality rates. Statistical 
methods are used to adjust the mortality rates reflected 

on the base table based on the Company’s experience of 
improvement or worsening of mortality. An appropriate 
but not excessive prudent allowance is made for expected 
future improvements. Assumptions are differentiated by sex, 
underwriting class and business type.

An increase in rates will lead to a larger number of claims and 
claims could occur sooner than anticipated, which will increase 
the expenditure and reduce profits for the shareholders.

b) investment returns
The actuarial valuation as at 31 December 2011 used a 
discount rate of 4% p.a. compounded for individual long 
term insurance contracts.  The same rate was used for the 
valuation as at 31 December 2010. The weighted average 
rate of return earned by the assets backing the life fund in 
2011 was 7.2% (2010: 11.7% p.a.) and the average over the 
last valuation interest rate assumption allows for a significant 
margin over the actual rate earned hence strengthening the 
prudence in the valuation basis significantly. An increase in 
investment return would lead to a reduction in expenditure 
and an increase in profits for the shareholders.

c) Expenses and expenses inflation 
Operating expenses assumptions reflect the projected costs 
of maintaining and servicing in-force policies and associated 
overhead expenses. The current level of management 
expenses is taken to be an appropriate expense base.  The 
NPV method makes implicit assumptions on the level of 
expenses and expense inflation. As at 31 December 2011 the 
proportion of annual premiums reserved for future expenses 
was 35.9% p.a. (2010: 35% p.a.).This is significantly higher 
than the actual current level of management expenses being 
incurred in the life fund, again significantly strengthening the 
prudence in valuation basis.

An increase in the level of expenses would result in increase 
in expenditure thereby reducing profits for shareholders.

d) sensitivity analysis
The analysis is performed for reasonably possible movements 
in key assumptions with all other assumptions held constant. 
Sensitivity information will also vary according to the current 
economic assumptions. The Net Premium Valuation (NPV) 
actuarial method used to value the actuarial liabilities of 
long term insurance business is not very sensitive to changes 
in the key assumptions used in determining the actuarial 
liabilities. The key actuarial assumptions will need to change 
very significantly for the actuarial liabilities to change by a 
relatively small percentage.  The Company underwrites long 
term insurance business contracts with fixed and guaranteed 
terms as set out in the individual policy contracts with its 
clients. For actuarial liabilities under these contracts the key 
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4. risK MAnAGEMEnT (continued)

actuarial assumptions (i.e. interest rate used for discounting, mortality, lapses, inflation etc) are unchanged for the duration of the 
contract. Accordingly given the actuarial method and basis used under the NPV sensitivity analysis will not produce any significant 
movements.
The table below summarises the effect on the valuation of the life business, of possible changes in the key actuarial assumptions 
i.e. mortality and investment return assumptions.

e) insurance risk

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that 
the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the amount 
of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance 
contract, this risk is random and therefore unpredictable.
For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of 
probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal 
risk that the Company faces under its insurance contracts 
is that the actual claims and benefit payments exceed the 
carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur 
because the frequency or severity of claims and benefits are 
greater than estimated. Insurance events are random and the 
actual number and amount of claims and benefits will vary 
from year to year from the level established using statistical 
techniques. 
Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar 
insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability about 
the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified 
portfolio is less likely to be affected across the board by a 
change in any subset of the portfolio. The Company has 
developed its insurance underwriting strategy to diversify 
the type of insurance risks accepted and within each of these 
categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks to 
reduce the variability of the expected outcome. Factors that 
aggravate insurance risk include lack of risk diversification in 
terms of type and amount of risk, geographical location and 
type of industry covered.

By nature of the Company’s business, the uncertainty about 
the amount and timing of claims payments is typically 
resolved within one year.

f) Lapses and surrender rates
Lapses relate to termination of policies due to non payment of 
premiums. Surrender rates relate to voluntary termination of 
policies by policyholders. Policy termination assumptions are 
determined using statistical measures based on Company’s 
experience and vary by product type, policy and sales trends. 
An increase in lapse rates will increase the value of insurance 
liability and therefore reduce profits for the shareholders. 

g) Financial risk
The Company is exposed to financial risk through its financial 
assets, financial liabilities (investment contracts), reinsurance 
assets and insurance liabilities. In particular the key financial 
risk is that the proceeds from its financial assets are not 
sufficient to fund the obligations arising from its insurance 
and investment contracts. The most important components 
of this financial risk are interest rate risk, liquidity risk and 
credit risk.
These risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency 
and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and 
specific market movements. The risks that the Company 
primarily faces due to the nature of its investments and 
liabilities are interest rate risk and currency fluctuation risk.

(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises primarily from investments in fixed 
interest securities.  The sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk 
illustrates how changes in the fair value or future cash flows 
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market interest rates at the reporting date.  For financial 

 Base Value investment investment  Mortality 
  returns -1% returns +1% +10%
 Kshs ‘000 Kshs ‘000 Kshs ‘000 Kshs ‘000
Year ended 31 December 2011    
Ordinary Life Business    332,815        339,804          325,906    332,815 
Superannuation Business       75,001          75,001             75,001      75,001 
    
Total Policy liability    407,816        414,805          400,907    407,816 
    
Year ended 31 December 2010    
Ordinary Life Business    285,494        291,489          279,498    285,494 
Superannuation Business       75,560          75,560             75,560      75,560 
    
Total Policy liability    361,054        367,049          355,058    361,054 
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 neither past-due  Past due but   Total net
 nor impaired  not impaired impaired amount
 Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
    
Policy loans receivable 91,527,559 3,592,352 7,289,269 102,409,180
Reinsurance receivables 40,476,875   5,691,209                  -  46,168,084
Direct insurance receivables 106,328,714 19,267,995                   - 125,596,709
Other receivables   38,547,710 4,435,456 12,311,611 55,294,777
Deposits with financial institutions 43,866,250                    -                   - 43,866,250
Bank and cash balances 16,165,518                     -                    - 16,165,518
 
 336,912,624 32,987,012 17,440,491 329,468,750

instruments and insurance contracts described in this note, the sensitivity is solely associated with the former, as the carrying 
amounts of the latter are not directly affected by changes in market risks.

The Company’s management monitors the sensitivity of reported interest rate movements on a quarterly basis by assessing the 
expected changes in the different portfolios due to a parallel movement of plus 5 percentage points in all yield curves of financial 
assets and financial liabilities. These particular exposures illustrate the Company’s overall exposure to interest rate sensitivities 
included in the Company’s ALM framework and its impact in the Company’s profit or loss by business.

Given the Company’s asset and liability profiles a 5% increase or decrease in interest yields would not result in any significant 
additional profit or loss for the period to 31 December 2011.

(ii) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to the other party by failing to discharge an 
obligation. The Company’s credit risk is primarily guided by the Insurance Act. The Company has an active finance and investments 
committee that guides the credit control function of the Company. The committee comprises board members and sits on a 
quarterly basis. 

The Company’s credit risk is primarily guided by the Insurance Act. The Company has an active finance and investments committee 
that guides the credit control function of the Company. The committee comprises board members and sits on a quarterly basis. 

The table below provides information regarding the credit risk exposure of the Company at 31 December 2011 

4. risK MAnAGEMEnT (continued)

  2011 2010
 Change in  impact on profit  impact on profit
 variables  before tax  before tax 
  Kshs  Kshs 
   
Increase in interest rate  5% 100,744 107,295
   
Decrease in interest rate  5% (100,744) (107,295)
   
The table below gives the concentration of interest risk 
  2011 2010
Interest from government securities  61% 51%
Interest from bank deposits  14% 14%
Interest from policy loans  23% 34%
Other interest income  3% 1%
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   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
  
At start of the year   5,128,880 4,993,816
Provision charge for the year    2,160,389    135,064
  
At end of the year   7,289,269 5,128,880
  

The table below provides information regarding the credit risk exposure of the Company at 31 December 2010.

 neither past-due  Past due but   Total net
 nor impaired  not impaired impaired amount
 Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
    
Policy loans receivable 55,958,760 37,055,875 5,128,880 98,143,515
Reinsurance receivables 9,923,230   6,502,596                  -  16,425,826
Direct insurance receivables 78,879,968 -                   - 78,879,968
Other receivables   24,034,548 7,612,423 12,311,611   43,958,582
 
 168,796,506 51,170,894 16,967,840 237,407,891

The fair value of collateral on the loans amounted to KShs 126 million (2010: KShs. 122 million). No collateral is held for any of the 
above assets. All receivables that are neither past due or impaired are within their approved credit limits, and no receivables have 
had their terms renegotiated.

Collateral is held for policy loans receivables. The Company records impairment allowance for policy loans receivables in a separate 
impairment allowance account. The movement in the allowance for impairment losses account for policy loan receivables is as 
follows:

(iii) Price risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific 
to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company’s equity price risk exposure relates to financial assets whose values will fluctuate as a result of changes in market 
prices, principally investment securities not held for the account of unit-linked business.

The Company’s price risk policy requires it to manage such risks by setting and monitoring objectives and constraints on investments, 
diversification plans, limits on investments in each sector and market and careful and planned use of financial instruments.
The Company has no significant concentration of price risk.

Changes in prices of equities will have the following impact in the statement of comprehensive income

4. risK MAnAGEMEnT (continued)

  2011  2010
 % change in base Kshs % change in base Kshs
    
Equity investments at fair value through 
P&L (Quoted) +(-)5% 513,219 +(-)5% 589,079
    
Investments with fund managers +(-)5% 951,761 +(-)5% 847,075
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(h) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that cash may not be available to pay obligations when due at a reasonable cost. The primary liquidity 
risk of the Company is the obligation to pay claims to policyholders as they fall due. The projected settlement of these liabilities 
is modelled, on a regular basis, using actuarial techniques. The board sets limits on the minimum proportion of maturing funds 
available to meet such calls and on the minimum level of borrowing facilities that should be in place to cover anticipated liabilities 
and unexpected levels of demand. The maturity profile of assets and liabilities is as shown below.

   up to 3 months  3-12 months 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
 Kshs  Kshs Kshs Kshs  Kshs
ASSETS     
Investments 73,165,848 94,318,934 102,409,180 464,645,602 734,539,564
Trade & other 
receivables 125,596,709 127,514,471 - - 253,111,180
Cash and bank 
balances 16,165,518                      -                      -                       -      16,165,518
     
Total assets 214,928,075 221,833,405 102,409,180 464,645,602 1,003,816,262
     
LIABILITIES     
Insurance contract 
liabilities 104,694,782 123,342,383 - 355,826,125 583,863,290
Payable under 
investment contracts - - 75,122,356 - 75,122,356
Payables under 
reinsurance 
arrangements - 8,358,428 - - 8,358,428
Other payables     1,896,939 48,678,945 11,945,804                        - 62,521,688
     
Total liabilities 106,591,721 180,379,756 87,068,160 355,826,125 729,865,312

The maturity profile of assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2010 is as shown below.

 up to 3 months  3-12 months 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
 Kshs  Kshs Kshs Kshs  Kshs
ASSETS     
Investments 78,076,102 90,042,919 98,143,515 428,592,997 694,855,533
Trade & other 
receivables 78,879,968 82,911,102 - - 161,791,070
Cash and bank 
balances 14,410,269                      -                     -                        -   14,410,269
     
Total assets 171,366,339 172,954,021 98,143,515 428,592,997 871,056,872
     
LIABILITIES     
Insurance contract 
liabilities 109,653,298 70,099,208 - 286,345,888 466,098,394
Payable under 
investment contracts - - 85,092,065 - 85,092,065
Payables under 
reinsurance 
arrangements - 13,042,253 - - 13,042,253
Other payables         556,139 39,087,767 11,807,814                        - 51,451,720
     
Total liabilities 110,209,437 122,229,228 96,899,879 286,345,888 615,684,432

(i) Currency risk
The Company predominantly transacts in Kenya shillings. The risk associated with transactions is other currency is considered 
nominal.

4. risK MAnAGEMEnT (continued)

nOTEs TO THE FinAnCiAL sTATEMEnTs 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011



Page 31

PIONEER ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

The Company’s key objective in management of capital is to ensure that it operates as a going concern. Capital management is 
not restricted to management of equity but includes management of working capital and compliance with regulatory and other 
legal requirements. The Company has throughout the year maintained adequate working capital.

The Company has complied with solvency requirements and security deposits as required by the Insurance Act. The table below 
illustrates compliance with margin of solvency requirements and lien deposit requirements:
    2011 2010
    Kshs  Kshs 
Solvency Margin Requirements:  
Required solvency margin    36,158,414 40,336,229
Available solvency Margin    107,977,846 191,040,151
  
Surplus on solvency margin       71,819,432 150,703,922
  
Solvency ratio    299% 474%
  
Security Deposit Requirements:  
Required security deposits    41,557,306 40,336,229
Available security deposits    47,000,000 47,000,000
  
Surplus in security deposits      5,442,694   6,663,771

  Motor  Fittings &  
Year ended 31 December 2011 Vehicles Equipment Computers Total
  Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
Cost    
At 1 January 2011 8,370,785 13,899,080 15,155,715 37,425,580
Additions  -  2,441,761 2,159,249 4,601,010
Disposals  (2,627,500)     (461,041)    (952,903)     (4,041,444)  
At 31 December 2011     5,743,285 15,879,800 16,362,061   37,985,146
    
Depreciation    
At 1 January 2011  3,472,135  8,392,753 11,287,379  23,152,267
Charge for the year 1,049,710 1,244,671 1,513,238    3,807,619
Disposals  (2,627,500)   (444,620)     (906,004)    (3,978,124)
At 31 December 2011    1,894,345  9,192,804 11,894,613  22,981,762 
    
Net book value    
At 31 December 2011 3,848,940 6,686,996 4,467,448 15,003,384
    
Year ended 31 December 2010    
Cost    
At 1 January 2010  3,122,233  11,717,231 13,574,182  28,413,646
Additions  5,248,552  2,181,849   1,659,533 9,089,934
Disposals                  -                    -        (78,000)        (78,000)  
At 31 December 2010 8,370,785 13,899,080 15,155,715 37,425,580
    
Depreciation    
At 1 January 2010  3,023,288 7,356,599  10,035,184  20,415,071
Charge for the year 448,847 1,036,154 1,330,195    2,815,196
Disposal                   -                   -       (78,000)         (78,000)
At 31 December 2010  3,472,135  8,392,753 11,287,379  23,152,267
    
Net book value    
At 31 December 2010 4,898,650 5,506,327 3,868,336 14,273,313

Included in the cost of property and equipment above is an amount of KShs 15,250,910 (2010: KShs 14,941,794) fully depreciated assets. The carrying amounts disclosed 
above for property and equipment reasonably approximate fair values at reporting date. The notional depreciation on these assets is KShs 3,352,285 (2010: KShs 2,644,134)

5. CAPiTAL MAnAGEMEnT

6. PrOPErTY AnD EQuiPMEnT

nOTEs TO THE FinAnCiAL sTATEMEnTs  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011



Page 32

PIONEER ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
Cost:  
At 1 January    8,947,319 8,902,079
Additions   1,795,770 45,240
Disposal      (161,000)                    -
   
   10,582,089 8,947,319
Amortisation:  
At 1 January   7,682,765 6,896,621
Charge for the year   684,478 786,144
Disposal      (131,933)                    -
   
At 31 December      8,235,309 7,682,765
   
Net book value:  
At 31 December    2,346,780 1,264,554

This relates to computer software. Included in the cost of intangible assets above is an amount of KShs 6,978,909 (2010: KShs 
4,993,975) fully amortised assets. The notional amortisation on these assets is KShs 1,395,782 (2010: KShs 998,795).

8. inVEsTMEnT PrOPErTiEs     
   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
    
At start of the year    348,791,400 344,500,000
Additions   - 4,291,400
Gain on  revaluation     42,808,600                       -
   
At end of the year   391,600,000 348,791,400

Investment properties are stated at fair value, which has been determined based on valuations performed by Gimco Limited and 
Nnamdi & Maende Associates, registered and independent valuers as at 31 December 2011 on the basis of open market value. 
The fair value represents the amount at which the assets could be exchanged between a knowledgeable, willing buyer and a 
knowledgeable, willing seller in an arm’s length transaction at the date of valuation. Valuations are performed on an annual basis 
and the fair value gains and losses are recorded within the statement of comprehensive income.

The Company entered into operating leases for its investment properties. The rental income arising during the year and the 
expenses arising in respect of such properties during the year are disclosed in note 31.

9.  FinAnCiAL AssETs AT FAir VALuE THrOuGH PrOFiT Or LOss
   
(a) Quoted investment              2011             2010
   Kshs Kshs
   
At start of the year   11,781,579 5,871,036
Purchases   12,366,123 -
Disposals   (10,219,029) -
Fair value (loss) / gain   (3,664,296)    5,910,543
   
At end of the year     10,264,377 11,781,579
   
 These relate to investment in quoted equities traded at the Nairobi Securities Exchange.

7. inTAnGiBLE AssETs
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(b)    investments with Fund Managers

   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
   
At start of the year   16,941,492 12,614,627
Subscriptions for the year   5,034,343 3,934,342
Withdrawals   (1,996,860) (301,535)
Fair value (loss) / gain       (943,754)       694,058
   
At end of the year    19,035,221  16,941,492
   
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss   29,299,598 28,723,071
   
The fund managers invest the fund in unit trusts which are valued at fair value on as at year end.

9.1.  FAir VALuE OF FinAnCiAL insTruMEnTs

a) Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation 
technique. It should be noted that these disclosure only cover instruments measured at fair value.

Level 1 - Financial assets and liabilities that are measured in whole or in part by reference to unadjusted, quoted prices in an 
active market for identical assets and liabilities. Quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, 
industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions 
on an arm’s length basis. This level includes listed government securities in Nairobi Stock Exchange.

Level 2 - Financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable 
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). For example, instruments measured 
using a valuation technique based on assumptions that are supported by prices from observable current market transactions are 
categorised as level 2.

Level 3 - Financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on observable market data are categorised as 
level 3.

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy. This 
hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when available. The Company considers relevant and observable market 
prices in its valuations where possible.

2011  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
   Kshs  Kshs Kshs
   
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  10,264,377 19,035,221                   -
   
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss                    -                     - 56,852,662

2010  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
   Kshs  Kshs Kshs
   
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  11,781,579 16,941,942              -
   
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss                     -                    - 70,647,269
 

9.  FinAnCiAL AssETs AT FAir VALuE THrOuGH PrOFiT Or LOss (continued)
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b) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value

The table below summarises the carrying amounts and fair values of those financial assets and liabilities not presented on the 
Company’s statement of financial position at their fair value. This table does not include the fair values of non-financial assets and 
non-financial liabilities.
   Carrying amount  Fair value
     Kshs   Kshs
  
Financial assets  
Bank and cash balances    16,165,518 16,165,518
Deposits with financial institutions   43,866,250 43,866,250
Government securities held to maturity   167,364,536 170,803,776
Policy loans receivable    102,409,180 109,698,449
Other receivables   55,294,779 67,606,388
  
   385,100,263 408,140,381
  
Financial liabilities   
Term loan   2,572,805 1,870,496
Payable under deposit administration contracts   18,269,694 14,444,796
Other payables   58,051,494 58,051,494
  
   78,893,993 74,366,786

The following describes the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for those financial instruments which 
are not already recorded at fair value in the financial statements:

(i) Assets for which fair value approximates carrying value 
For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short term maturity (less than three months) it is assumed that the carrying 
amounts approximate to their fair value. This assumption is also applied to bank and cash balances, bank overdraft and deposits 
with financial institutions without a specific maturity.

(ii) Policy loans receivables
Policy loan receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(iii) Investment securities
The fair value for held to maturity assets is based on market prices. Where this information is not available, fair value is estimated 
using the quoted market prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield characteristics.

9.1. FAir VALuE OF FinAnCiAL insTruMEnTs (Continued)
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(a) Gross policy loan receivables   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
  
At start of the year     103,272,395   98,152,392
Loans advanced   11,226,327 12,693,269
Loan repayments   (4,800,273)  (7,573,266)
   
   109,698,449 103,272,395
Less:  Provision for impairment losses(Note 10(b))     (7,289,269)   (5,128,880)
   
At end of the year   102,409,180  98,143,515
 
   2011 2010
(b) impairment loss   Kshs Kshs
   
At start of the year   5,128,880 4,993,816
Impairment loss for the year   2,100,922     135,064
   
At end of the year    7,229,802 5,128,880
   
Maturity profile of policy loans  
Loans maturing:  
Within 1 year   16,924,390 27,576,760
In 1-2 Years   12,389,409 16,130,920
In 3-5 years     80,384,650   59,564,715
   
   109,698,449 103,272,395
   
 The weighted average effective interest rate on policy loans was 14% (2010: 14%). The collateral for the policy loans is the cash 
surrender value of the underlying policy. In case of default the loan is written off against the cash surrender value.

11. GOVErnMEnT sECuriTiEs HELD TO MATuriTY     
   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs

Treasury bills and bonds:  
Maturing within 91 days    94,318,934 20,925,970
Maturing after 91 days but less than one year   4,958,548 83,078,916
Maturing after one year     68,087,054   65,839,630
   
   167,364,536 169,844,516
   
 The weighted average effective interest rate on Government securities was 8.79% (2010: 6.42%).

12. rECEiVABLEs ArisinG OuT OF rEinsurAnCE ArrAnGEMEnTs
 
   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
   
General business (run off)   5,691,209 6,502,596
Claims recoverable under reinsurance arrangements;  
Life business   29,020,404 -
Medical business     2,822,504   9,923,230
   
   37,534,117 16,425,826
   
These are receivables that arise from reinsurance policy that provides an insurer with coverage for specific individual risks that are 
unusual or so large that they aren’t covered in the insurance entity’s reinsurance treaties.

10. POLiCY LOAns rECEiVABLE

nOTEs TO THE FinAnCiAL sTATEMEnTs  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011



Page 36

PIONEER ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
   
Check off schemes   39,608,023 26,089,112
Direct clients - life   21,270,697 16,254,310
Corporate clients - Medical   64,717,989 36,536,546
   
    125,596,709  78,879,968
   
The amounts receivable do not carry interest and are due within period ranging from 30 days to 180 days.

14. rEinsurAnCE sHArE OF insurAnCE LiABiLiTiEs 
   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
   
At start of year   13,398,274 18,355,815
Reserve released    (4,764,307)   (4,957,541)
   
At end of the year       8,633,967   13,398,274
   
 This relates to the reinsurers portion of the unearned premium reserve in note 28.

15. DEFErrED COMMissiOns   
   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
   
At start of year   9,128,420 12,695,441
Movement during the year     16,923,190  (3,567,021)
   
At end of the year      26,051,610    9,128,420
   
 This commission is related to unearned premium reserve in note 28.

16. OTHEr rECEiVABLEs   
   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
   
Interest receivable   3,629,484 3,628,987
Agents loans and advances   35,711,842 32,235,645
Allowance  for impairment losses (16 (a))   (12,311,611) (12,311,611)
Staff loans and advances   8,611,126 3,914,189
Deposits    6,464,273 6,476,329
Prepayments   625,988 2,255,923
Rent receivable   6,474,601 2,535,069
Guarantees & performance bonds   160,000 60,000
Other sundry debtors     5,929,076    5,164,051
   
   55,294,779  43,958,582

 

16. (a) ALLOWAnCE FOr iMPAirMEnT LOssEs MOVEMEnT  
   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
   
Allowance at the beginning of the year   (12,311,611) (11,097,439)
Additional provision                         -    (1,214,172)
   
Allowance at the end of the year   (12,311,611) (12,311,611)

13. rECEiVABLEs ArisinG OuT OF DirECT insurAnCE ArrAnGEMEnTs
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17. DEPOsiTs WiTH FinAnCiAL insTiTuTiOns

   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs

Commercial Bank of Africa Limited   4,337,564 2,122,416
Habib Bank Limited   1,000,000 3,242,959
Bank of Africa   21,410,869 21,778,286
NIC Bank Limited    11,988,654  11,408,805
Ecobank Limited     5,129,163  10,800,565
   
    43,866,250  49,353,031
   
Maturing as:-  
Maturing within 91 days   40,146,121 29,388,053
Maturing after 91 days but less than one year   3,720,129 19,964,978
   
    43,866,250  49,353,031
   
 These relate to investments in fixed and call deposits. The weighted average effective interest rate on deposits with financial 
institutions was 6.65% (2010: 6.25%).
 

18. sHArE CAPiTAL 
   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
Authorised:-  
1,500,000 (2010: 1,500,000) ordinary shares of KShs 100 each    150,000,000 150,000,000
   
Issued and fully paid:-  
1,500,000 (2010: 1,500,000) ordinary shares of KShs 100 each   150,000,000 150,000,000
   
 The weighted average number of shares in issue during the year was 1,500,000 (2010: 1,500,000).
 
19. rETAinED EArninGs   
    
 The retained earnings balance represents the amount available for dividend distribution to the shareholders of the Company.
   

20. sTATuTOrY FunD  

The statutory fund represents a reserve maintained within the long term insurance business and represents unallocated surpluses 
from previous actuarial valuations as required by section 46(5) of the Insurance Act. Transfers from this fund are made upon 
recommendation of the actuary. The movement has been shown on page 9.
 

21. insurAnCE COnTrACT LiABiLiTiEs   
   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
   
As at 1 January   286,345,888 287,893,080
Change in actuarial value of policyholders liabilities     59,896,742    (1,547,192)
   
Life fund at 31 December   346,242,630 286,345,888
   
 An actuarial valuation of the long term insurance business fund was carried out by the Company’s consulting actuary as at 31 
December 2011. The actuarial valuation revealed an actuarial surplus of KShs 113,975,809 (2010: KShs 84,003,753). The actuary 
recommended a transfer to income statement of KShs 30,000,000 (2010: KShs 12,554,100). The additional surplus not appropriated 
by the actuary at the end of the financial year was KShs 9,306,739 (2010: 30,840,093).
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   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
   
Balance at start of the year   14,444,796 9,558,374
Deposits received during the year   5,160,636 4,188,424
Benefits paid    (1,996,860)  (301,535)
Deposit administration expenses         (119,451)       (134,011)
Interest declared          780,573    1,133,544
  
Balance at end of the year    18,269,694  14,444,796
   
 Deposit administration contracts are recorded at amortised cost. The liabilities are shown inclusive of interest accumulated to 31 
December. Interest was declared and credited to the client accounts at a weighted average rate of 5% for the year (2010: 10%). 
Members’ contributions accrue interest from receipt date and cease accruing interest upon withdrawal. Interest is credited as per 
the received returns less administration expenses subject to the minimum guaranteed rate of return.
 

23. PAYABLE unDEr uniT LinKED PrODuCTs 
   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
   
Balance at start of the year   70,647,269 50,097,370
Received during the year   5,696,856 16,167,335
Withdrawals during the year       (22,829,905)     (782,544)
Interest declared       3,338,442    5,165,108
   
Balance at end of the year     56,852,662  70,647,269
   
 This relates to the investment allocation portion of the Super Investor Plan. Interest was declared and credited to the client 
accounts at a weighted average rate of 4% for the year (2010: 8%).

24. OuTsTAnDinG CLAiMs 
   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
   
Ordinary life   42,726,379 59,329,897
Group life   32,131,915 25,077,392
Medical   23,585,238 18,994,759
General business (run off)       6,251,250     6,251,250
   
   104,694,782 109,653,298
   
  
MOVEMEnT in OuTsTAnDinG CLAiMs   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
   
At start of the year   109,653,298 110,220,350
Claims intimated during the year   323,040,374 232,366,982
Claims paid during the year   (327,998,890) (232,934,034)
   
At end of the year    104,694,782  109,653,298
   
 The balance at year end represents intimated amounts remaining unsettled as at year end. The amounts payable do not carry 
interest and are due within period ranging from 30 days to 180 days.

22. PAYABLE unDEr DEPOsiT ADMinisTrATiOn COnTrACTs
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25. TErM LOAn

   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs

At start of the year   3,811,616 -
Borrowing during the year   - 4,200,000
Loans repaid during the year    (1,238,811)   (388,384)
   
At end of the year   2,572,805 3,811,616
   
Disaggregated as:-  
Long term portion   1,396,217 2,553,396
   
Short term portion   1,176,588 1,258,220
   
 The term loan is from Commercial Bank of Africa. This is a KShs 4.2 million asset finance facility advanced in July 2010 to finance 
the purchase of a motor vehicle, repayable over a period of 3 years at an interest rate of 15% (Base rate 14% +1%) p.a.

The loan facility is secured by:-
a) Motor vehicle log book registered in the joint names of Pioneer Assurance Company Limited and the Bank.
b) Two directors’ personal guarantees of KShs 4 million each.
 
26. PAYABLE unDEr rEinsurAnCE COnTrACTs 
   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
   
Life   7,383,032 12,026,656
Motor  Pool      975,396   1,015,597
   
   8,358,428 13,042,253
   
 The balance at year end represents premiums owed to reinsurers with respect to business in excess of the Company’s retention 
limits at year end.

27. OTHEr PAYABLEs 
   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
   
Commission payable   14,200,218 8,888,217
Commission on dormant agents   16,238,642 12,217,605
Agents bonds   3,673,200 3,172,000
Accrued expenses   3,348,079 4,187,272
Provision for gratuity (note 27.1)   8,177,640 8,177,640
Provision for accrued leave (note 27.1)   3,768,164 3,630,174
Other sundry creditors      8,645,550    6,811,057
   
   58,051,493 47,083,965
 
The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at statement of financial position date due to their short-
term nature The amounts payable do not carry interest and are due within period ranging from 30 days to 180 days.  
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27.1 PrOVisiOns FOr LiABiLiTiEs AnD CHArGEs

    Accrued
   Gratuity leave Total
  Kshs Kshs Kshs
    
At 1 January 2011  8,177,640 3,630,174  11,807,814
Additional provisions   - 137,990    137,990
Paid during the year                     -                  -                      -
    
At 31 December 2011   8,177,640 3,768,164  11,945,804
    
At 1 January 2010  6,565,221 3,438,163   10,003,384
Additional provisions   1,622,920 192,011    1,814,931
Paid during the year       (10,501)                   -         (10,501)
    
At 31 December 2010  8,177,640 3,630,174  11,807,814
    
 Provisions for long service awards and annual leave are based on services rendered by employees up to 31 December 2011. The 
balances have been included in other payables in note 27 above
 
28. unEArnED PrEMiuM rEsErVE
   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
    
At start of the year     70,099,208   97,233,836
Provisions for the year/ (release of reserves)    53,243,176  (27,134,628)

At end of the year     123,342,384 70,099,208
    
 This provision represents the liability for health business contracts where the Company’s obligations are not expired as at the year 
end. Movement in the provision is as shown above.
 

29. TAXATiOn 
   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
(a)   statement of financial position  
Balance brought forward                  556,139     3,517,876
Charge for the year   8,897,888 6,280,491
Paid during the year     (7,381,822)   (9,242,228)
   
Tax payable      2,072,205        556,139
   
(b) statement of comprehensive income/income tax expense  
Current tax at 30 % (2010 – 30 %)       8,897,888    6,280,491
   
 Reconciliation of taxation expense to tax based on accounting profit:-  
Accounting profit before tax   38,696,926 55,456,552
   
Tax applicable rate of 30% (2010 - 30%)   11,609,078 16,636,966
Tax effect on items not deducted/allowable for tax      (2,711,190) (10,356,475)
   
        8,897,888    6,280,491
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30. PrEMiuM inCOME

(a)    Gross earned premiums   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
 
Ordinary life   374,012,620 311,557,030
Group life   133,984,908 100,925,243
Medical   251,265,273 132,556,179
Gross Written Premiums   759,262,801 545,038,452
 
Change in unearned premiums provision     (53,243,176)   27,134,628
   
   706,019,625 572,173,080
(b)    Premiums ceded to reinsurers  
   
Ordinary life   (730,201) (351,901)
Group life   (55,839,238) (64,655,677)
Medical   (17,588,569) (25,335,864)
 Reinsurance share of Change in unearned premiums provision     (4,764,307)    (4,957,541)
   
   (78,922,315) (95,300,983)
   
Net earned premiums   627,097,310 476,872,097
 
 The unearned premium reserve shown above relates to medical business. 

31. inVEsTMEnT inCOME 
   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
   
Interest on policy loans    5,595,851 8,138,449
Policy processing fee   9,537,250 8,431,648
Interest on treasury bills and bonds   14,915,334 12,269,003
Interest on fixed deposits   3,328,110 3,250,491
Interest on staff and agents loans    635,901 251,449
(Loss) / gain on revaluation of quoted shares   (5,117,076) 5,910,543
(Loss) / gain on revaluation of unit linked products   (943,754) 694,058
Realised gain on quoted investments   1,452,780 -
Investment expenses   (416,738) -
Rental income from investment property   6,876,865 5,592,849
Investment property expenses   (2,559,950) (2,727,516)
Other investment income   1,843,463       722,206
Gain on revaluation    42,808,600                     -
   
   77,956,636 42,533,180

32. COMMissiOn EArnED  
   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs

Ordinary life   392,474 677,847
Group life   10,670,147 12,705,295
Medical                       -   6,333,965
   
   11,062,621 19,717,107
 
The Company earns commissions from its reinsurers, on agreed percentage basis, for business ceded to them.
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   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
   
Share of (loss) / income – Kenya Motor Pool   (796,107) 3,675,855
   
   (796,107) 3,675,855
   

34. CLAiMs AnD POLiCYHOLDErs BEnEFiTs PAYABLE 
   
Death   82,317,599 59,374,423
Maturities   120,904,211 92,366,371
Surrenders    2,465,529 3,705,785
Personal accident   68,496 278,727
Withdrawals   1,320,222 817,606
Medical   182,822,413 128,628,471
Change in actuarial value of policyholder liabilities   59,896,742 (1,547,192)
Interest declared on investment products        4,119,015      6,298,652
Gross claims and policy holder benefits payable   453,914,227 289,922,843
Recoverable under reinsurance contracts     (68,302,084)  (57,555,861)
  
Net claims and policyholder benefits payable     385,612,143 232,366,982

35. OPErATinG AnD OTHEr EXPEnsEs 
   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
   
Administration and operating expenses   125,601,355 104,606,296
Selling and distribution expenses   17,446,076 23,130,981
Finance cost    1,873,523 5,413,988
Depreciation    3,807,619 2,815,196
Amortisation           684,478         786,144
   
   149,413,051 136,752,605
   
36. COMMissiOn PAYABLE  
   
Ordinary life   108,066,732 86,099,547
Group life   10,936,240 5,486,141
Medical   21,714,704 22,852,945
Micro –Insurance            880,664     3,783,467
  
   141,598,340 118,222,100

33. OTHEr inCOME

nOTEs TO THE FinAnCiAL sTATEMEnTs 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
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37. PrOFiT BEFOrE TAX
 The following items have been charged in arriving at profit before tax and the increase in the Life Fund:
   
   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
   
Depreciation    3,807,619 2,815,196
Amortisation   684,478 786,144
Staff costs (note 38)   68,343,060 59,918,198
Auditors’ remuneration   1,815,000 1,650,000
Interest   471,571 234,993
Loss on revaluation of quoted shares   3,664,296 -
Loss on revaluation of unit linked investments   943,574 -
Directors’ emoluments:  
-Fees   3,707,141 945,712
-Other remuneration    8,232,000  7,186,400
   
And after crediting:  
Gain /(loss) on revaluation of quoted shares   - 5,910,543
Gain on disposal   776,442 3,500
Gain on revaluation of unit linked investments                     -     694,058
   

38. sTAFF COsTs  
   
Staff costs include the following:  
 - Salaries and wages   56,157,784 49,112,948
 - National social security benefit costs    199,000  167,400
 - Retirement benefit costs    2,415,817  1,824,557
 - Others     9,570,459   8,813,293
   
   68,343,060 59,918,198
   
The number of staff as at year end was 72 (2010: 68).

39. EArninGs PEr sHArE   

   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
   
Total number of shares in issue during the year   1,500,000 1,500,000
   
Weighted average number of shares in issue during the year   1,500,000 1,500,000
   
Profit after tax   29,799,038 49,176,061
   
Basic earnings per share    19.87          32.78
   
Diluted earnings per share    19.87          32.78
   
 There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares between the reporting date and date of completion of these 
financial statements.

nOTEs TO THE FinAnCiAL sTATEMEnTs  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
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 For purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balance sheet amounts:
   
   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
   
Bank and cash balances    16,165,518 14,410,269
Deposits with financial institutions (maturing within 91 days)   38,146,120 29,388,053
Bank overdraft                      -                    -
   
   54,311,638 43,798,322

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash 
requirements of the Company.

41. rELATED PArTY TrAnsACTiOns  
   
 In the normal course of business, insurance policies are sold to related parties at terms and conditions similar to those offered to 
other clients.
   
   2011 2010
i) Amounts due from related parties   Kshs Kshs
   
Key management staff personnel loans   8,268,116 3,237,979
Softline Limited   6,474,601 2,535,069
   
 Amount due from Softline Limited, a shareholder, relates to rent collected on behalf of the Company from its rental property. Key 
management personnel of the Company include directors (executive and non-executives) and Senior management.
   
   2011 2010
iii) Key management personnel compensation    Kshs Kshs
   
Salaries and other short-term employment benefits   26,982,000 24,866,986
Post-employment benefits      1,370,700    1,021,500
   
   28,352,700 25,888,486
 

41. rELATED PArTY TrAnsACTiOns (continued) 
   
   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
iv) Directors’ remuneration  
Fees       3,707,141    945,712
 Other remuneration (included in key management compensation above)  8,232,000 7,516,300
   
   11,939,141 8,462,01

40. CAsH AnD CAsH EQuiVALEnTs

nOTEs TO THE FinAnCiAL sTATEMEnTs 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
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42. CAPiTAL COMMiTMEnTs

nOTEs TO THE FinAnCiAL sTATEMEnTs  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
   
i) Capital: Authorised and contracted for   12,000,000                    -
   
ii) Capital: Authorised and not contracted for   11,721,704 19,857,200
   
 Capital commitments include KShs 2.9 million which will be spent on laying infrastructure for a wide area network and software 
licenses, KShs 3.1 million will be spent to acquire computers and servers to support the new system and KShs 5.6 million will be 
spent on partitioning of offices and purchasing of furniture. 
   
OPErATinG LEAsE COMMiTMEnTs  
 The Company has entered into a non-cancellable lease agreement to pay rent for the premises that it occupies. Distribution of 
future lease commitment is as shown below
   2011 2010
   Kshs Kshs
   
Within one year   9,733,692 12,534,376
After one year but not more than five years   44,051,100 13,060315
More than five years    12,422,932       836,360
   
   66,207,724 26,431,051
 
43. COnTinGEnCiEs

The company is involved in arbitration with a former client to recover unpaid premiums of KShs 8.9 million. Recoverability of the full 
amount is dependent on the ruling of the arbitrator who was appointed by the chairman law society of Kenya. As per the contract 
the verdict of the arbitrator is final and binding on both parties. This matter has not been finalized and there were hearings in 2011, 
the advocate expects to conclude the issue in May 2012.

Due to the nature of the business the company is involved in some litigation which have been fully provided for in the financial 
statements, the provision for such litigation is included in the claims and policy owner benefits payable.

44. DEFErrED TAX

A deferred tax asset estimated at KShs 3,306,733 (2010 – KShs 3,442,225) has not been recognized in these financial statements as 
the directors are of the opinion that it will not crystallise in the foreseeable future.

45. inCOrPOrATiOn

The Company is incorporated in Kenya under the Companies Act.

46. CurrEnCY

These financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (KShs). 
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LOnG TErM insurAnCE BusinEss rEVEnuE ACCOunT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

APPEnDiX i – LOnG TErM insurAnCE BusinEss rEVEnuE ACCOunT

  Life Medical 2011
  business business Total
  Kshs Kshs Kshs
    
Gross written premium  507,997,528 251,265,273 759,262,801
Unearned premiums                           -    (53,243,176)    (53,243,176)
    
Gross earned premium  507,997,528 198,022,097 706,019,625
Premium ceded to reinsurers      (56,569,439)   (22,352,876)   (78,922,315)
    
Net earned premiums  451,428,089 175,669,221 627,097,310
Investment and other income  31,785,051 46,171,585 77,956,636
Commissions earned       11,062,621                       -     11,062,621
    
Total income     494,275,761 221,840,806   716,116,567
    
    
Life and health claims  (82,386,095) (182,822,413) (265,208,508)
Surrenders  (3,785,751)                       - (3,785,751)
Annuity payments  (120,904,211)                       - (120,904,211)
Change in actuarial value of policyholder benefits  (59,896,742) - (59,896,742) 
Interest declared under investment contracts  (4,119,015) -  (4,119,015) 
Recoverable under reinsurance contracts      68,302,084                      -      68,302,084
    
Net claims and policyholder benefits payable  (202,789,730) (182,822,413) (385,612,143)
    
Operating and other expenses  (129,688,286) (19,724,765) (149,413,051)
Commissions payable   (122,437,006)    (19,161,334) (141,598,340)
    
Total policy owner benefits and expenses   (454,915,022)   (221,708,512) (676,623,534)
    
Profit before income tax  39,360,739 132,294 39,493,033
Income tax expense       (9,000,000)           102,112     (8,897,888)
    
Profit after tax      30,360,739          234,406    30,595,145
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LOnG TErM insurAnCE BusinEss rEVEnuE ACCOunT  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

APPEnDiX i – LOnG TErM insurAnCE BusinEss rEVEnuE ACCOunT (continued)

  Life Medical 2010
  Business business Total
  Kshs Kshs Kshs
    
Gross written premium  412,482,273 132,556,179 545,038,452
Unearned premiums                        -    27,134,628   27,134,628
    
Gross earned premium  412,482,273 159,690,807 572,173,080
Premium ceded to reinsurers    (65,007,578)   (30,293,405) (95,300,983)
    
Net earned premiums  347,474,695 129,397,402 476,872,097
Investment and other income  39,247,040 3,286,140 42,533,180
Commissions earned     13,383,142      6,333,965    19,717,107
    
Total income   400,104,877 139,017,507 539,122,384
    

Life and health claims  (59,374,423) (128,628,471) (188,002,894)
Surrenders  (3,705,785)                       - (3,705,785)
Annuity payments  (93,462,704) - (93,462,704)
Change in actuarial value of policyholder benefits  1,547,192 - 1,547,192
Interest declared under investment contracts  (6,298,652) - (6,298,652)
Recoverable under reinsurance contracts     21,911,055 35,644,806 57,555,861
    
Net claims and policyholder benefits payable  (139,383,317) (92,983,665) (232,366,982)
    
Operating and other expenses  (119,315,254) (17,437,351) (136,752,605)
Commissions payable    (98,012,113)   (20,209,987) (118,222,100)
    
Total policy owner benefits and expenses   (356,710,684) (130,631,003) (487,341,687)
    
Profit before income tax  43,394,193 8,386,504 51,780,697
Income tax expense        (3,766,230)      (2,514,261)    (6,280,491)

Profit after tax       39,627,963        5,872,243   45,500,206
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PErFOrMAnCE sTATisTiCs
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Premium income  shs’000    
  
2007  277,853   
2008  367,487   
2009  500,038   
2010  545,038   
2011  759,263  

Profits after tax  shs’000     
 
2007  3,442 
2008  2,122 
2009  65,689 
2010  49,176 
2011  29,799  

Total Assets  shs’000     
 
2007  507,562 
2008  579,883 
2009  823,341      
2010  886,595      
2011  1,021,166  

shareholders Funds  shs’000    
  
2007  68,923  
2008  71,045  
2009  221,734  
2010  270,910 
2011  300,709 

Life Fund  shs’000     
 
2007  254,893 
2008  256,764 
2009  287,893 
2010  286,345 
2011  346,243 
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COMPAnY inFOrMATiOn

PrinCiPAL PLACE OF BusinEss

Pioneer House
Moi Avenue
P.O. Box 20333
00200 City Square, NAIROBI

rEGisTErED OFFiCE

Pioneer House
Moi Avenue 3
P. O. Box 20333 
00200 City Square, NAIROBI

ACTuArY

Mr. Nalin Kapadia
102 F Wing Pranay Nagar, Ram Mandir Ext Road,
Vazira Naka Borivli (West) Mumbai, 400 092 India

BAnKErs

Barclays Bank of Kenya Limited 
P.O. Box 30120 - 00100
NAIROBI

Commercial Bank of Africa Limited
P.O. Box 30437 - 00100
NAIROBI

Habib Bank (K) Ltd
P.O. Box 30673 – 00100
NAIROBI
 
Bank of Africa
P.O. Box 69562 - 00400
Nairobi

sOLiCiTOrs

Mboya Wangong’u & Waiyaki Advocates
P.O. Box 74041-00200
NAIROBI

sECrETArY

Winniefred N. Jumba
Livingstone Associates
P.O. Box 30029 - 00100
NAIROBI

AuDiTOrs

Ernst & Young
Kenya–Re Towers, Upper Hill
P.O. Box 44286 - 00100
NAIROBI
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MAnAGEMEnT TEAM

John Kamande
Customer Service Manager

Timothy Mutua
Life Manager

Chrispinus Mugwanga
Sales & Marketing Manager

Patrick Kirimi
Corporate Business Manager

Robert Ipomai
ICT Manager

Margaret Mwashimba
Human Resources & Administration Manager

Cyprian Ombogo
Head of Finance

Isaac Maina
Marketing Manager, Corporate Business

Moses Kimani 
Managing Director
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PrODuCTs AnD sErViCEs

Endowment
This is an endowment policy taken on a fixed sum assured or 
premium for a specified duration in years. The sum assured is 
payable upon maturity or upon the death of the life assured 
and participates in profits. The policy can be surrendered for 
cash during the life of the policy provided it is in force. 
The policy provides for term of cover 10 to 30 years. The policy 
acquires surrender and paid up values upon full payment of 
premiums for three years entitling the policy holder to acquire 
a loan as stated in the policy.
The product benefits can be enhanced by incorporating 
Personal Accident as well as Funeral Expense riders.
School Fees
This is an education policy taken by a parent/guardian 
on his/her life for the benefit of a child. The term of policy 
is determined based on the age of the child.  The policy 
provides for term of cover 10 to 18 years. The product has 
cash benefits paid to the assured during the life of the policy 
to assist in payment of school fees
On death of the life assured half the sum assured is paid 
and 100% in the case of accidental death. In addition, 
premium payment is waived and the beneficiaries receive 
cash benefits when they fall due thus assuring the nominated 
child of education. The product benefits can be enhanced by 
incorporating Personal Accident as well as Funeral Expense 
riders

Anticipated Endowment
This is policy features a fixed sum assured for a specified 
duration in years. The policy provides for term of cover from 
12 to 21 years. The policy has cash benefits payable every 
1/3 and 2/3 period while the balance plus accrued Bonus are 
payable at maturity.
On death the full sum assured together with accrued 
bonuses is payable without any deduction of amounts that 
may have been paid earlier as cash benefits. The policy 
acquires surrender and paid up values after three years of full 
premium payment. The product benefits can be enhanced by 
incorporating Personal Accident as well as Funeral Expense 
riders.

super investor Policy-regular Premium
This is an investment plan coupled with insurance benefits 
and provides for a minimum term of 10 years. In the event of 
death during the term of the policy the accumulated invested 
premiums together with accrued interest are paid along with 
the life cover benefit.
Cash benefits are paid to the assured during the life of the 
policy based on the fund value. Interest accrues monthly 
and is re invested. The policy includes Waiver of premium 
benefit which ensures that in the unfortunate event of 
premature death, the fund value continues to grow because 

the company will continue to pay the investment premium, 
and the cash benefits when they fall due will be paid to the 
nominated beneficiaries.  This policy can be used to plan for 
the education of your child or other future commitments.
Super Investor Policy -Single Premium
The product provides for a minimum term of 5 years. In the 
event of death during the term of the policy, the investment 
component and life cover is paid out.

Family Master Plan
This is an investment product with a funeral whole life cover 
for self, immediate family and extended family. The FMP 
allows you flexibility to choose any term from 3 years.
On the death of the applicant, waiver of premium applies and 
the policy covers the nuclear family until the max age up to 
the time the age of the applicant, had s/he lived, gets to 65.
On the death of a covered dependent, his/her premium 
goes to the cash bonus automatically thus boosting the 
savings further. The policy holder may access the cash bonus 
any time after 3 years of premium payment to take care of 
personal commitments.  On the death of the applicant, the 
accumulated cash bonus goes to the beneficiary.
New Family Master Plan
This product is similar to the Family master plan.  It provides 
for:

1. Funeral Cover for self and covered dependants

2. Waiver of premium – free continuance of cover for 
nuclear family – on death of life assured while the policy 
is in force.

3. Annual cash benefit payments as from the 3rd year.  The 
policy also carries a surrender value. 

 Income Guard
This is a Personal Accident product which covers self and 
spouse within the policy. It has a life cover with a minimum 
term of 5 years. On natural death, the life cover sum assured 
is paid out.
Other benefits: Accidental Death Benefit, Permanent Total 
Disability Temporary Total 
Disability, Hospital Reimbursement and Funeral Expenses

HEsHiMA MPAnGO POA
It is a group life Product that offers Funeral cover for the 
family. It pays for the first death for a family member within 
one year. Benefit are Payable in 24 – 48 hours from the time of 
reporting. Age Limit is 6 months to 75 years.
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